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CRIABE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Liberty Row is a block of fourtesn brick row buildings located on the

noerth side of Person Streaet in Fayetteville, boundsd on the west by Markat
Sqlere and on ths east by Libarty Point, the triangular eastern termination
of ths block. The oldest structure in the row is the Liberty Point Store,
a Fedsral period building which abuts the point; the remaining small Vic-
torizan stores were built bstwesn 1846 and 1916.

The Liberty Point Store was obviously a pretentious sitructurs, as
idenced by its prominent site, its imposing size (five bays wide and thras
f)) and by the fact thatall thres of the visible brick elavations wers
originally laid in Flemish bond. The bond of tha north and south elevations
has bean partialliy altered, leaving only that of the 2ast end intact. The
two~story building is wadge shaped to conform to the trapezoidal sita formed|
by the intarsection of Person Streat with Bow Street. The west elevation

forms a party wall with the adjoining building. Ths south slops of the oddly

sonstiructed roof has two planes, while the north slope has a single plans.
5 gsouth slope of the east half of the roof is covered with standing-~seam

1
1
with composition shingles. The brick ends are parapeted, with two chimneys
with molded caps rising from the apex of each parapst. The east side parape
f“tlLLb the original brick coping. Ths building has basn divided into two
22, and the main (south) facade on Person Straest contains two simple

(6]

J
tWSLtluuh cantury wood and glass store fronts. The east store front is
flankad by pressed tin pillasters bearing the seal of a Chattanooga foundry
company. Six~over-six sash windows illuminate the structure. The main
facads windows have sandstons sills and sandstone flat archss with kaystones
Tha north elevation originally contained a door in sach outside bay of the
first story and windows in the remaining first-story bays; each sscond-story

aninz is surmounted by a flat brick arch. Sseveral of thsse: opsnings have
haan br cked up and new onsgs added. The door openings originally located
in Tll tha first-story bays of the east side elevation have besn closed up.
Thz second-story windows of this elevation are finished like thoss of the
main facade. 'The north and south elevations contain a three-course brick
coroal cornicse, terminatad at the east and by sandstons cormer blocks.

e
[

“1
1.4

The first floor has bean repeatadly altersd to accommodats various
”uﬂﬂfCLﬁl functions. Tha sacond floor was remodsled in the early twentiethn
antury, probably when the structure was divided. The only elament of the
rchitectural finish of this level that appears to bs original is the small
mean ﬁl in the centsr room of ths east half of the building. The slender
Doric pilasters, wids frieze board, and simply moldsd cornice anc shalf of
the mantal possibly date from the late Federal period. The attic is un-
finished. In the hass of ths ssction of each chimney which passas through
the attic 13 a small ractangular opsening.
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The wcqa*pdpr of thsa bu1741ﬂcs in the row share party walls, and, with
aption cf ons three-story bulldln ara two storias tall. Fiva of

3 ';Qings (number 101 -103, 109, lll 113-115, and 129 Parson Strest)
sear o have bsen built in the mid- nlppueenth century, and are similar in
Form to the Liberty Poilnt Store with parapeted gable roofs and six-over-six

cmgh mindows.  (101-102 and 111 ars concealed behind new fzcadss. ) Some

n, znd the north slope of tha east half and the entire west half arecoversd
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of the original facades are laid in Flamish bond and some in ona-to-three
common bond, and sevaral have sandstone window sills and lintels and brick
corbel cornices. A number of the store fronts are framed by pilasters bearing
the manufacturing seal of "George L. Maesker Company, Iron Works, Evansvills,
Indiana." The remaining eight buildings in the row, slightly taller than the
gable-roof stores, have flat roofs, and were built between 1896 and 1916.

Six of these (numbers 107, 127, 131, 133, 135, 137-139) retain their Italianaie
Revival and Romanesque Revival commercial facades. The dominant architectural
featuras of this group are the prominsnt window trim of the uppsr level and
the ornamental brickwork cornices. Mumbers 133 and 135 Person Street ars
Romanasque Revival in style, with sagmental-arched windows at the upper levels
and arcaded brick corbel cornices. Number 107 Parson Street, the Cumberland
Furniturs Company, 1s the most pretentious of this grouwp. The upper lavel of
ths stors is coverad with a prassad-tin facade featuring pairs of engagad
Doric colonnettes which flank the sacond-story wiandows and a decorative main
cornics taerminated on each snd by a corbel post. The simple wooden strast
level stors front is flanked by cast-iron pilasters. Since the photograph
was mads, the two-story brick structure with tall bracketed corrice (between

MeNeill Tailor Shop and Liberty Tunch) has bsen taken down.

GPO 32t1.724
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE i
Libarty Row, a reminder of Fayetteville's importance as an sarly trads

cantar, is one of the most cohesive ninetesnth century ccmmercial rows in
Worth Carolina, with examples of vernacular Federal, Italianate and Roman-
asque Revival stylss. Ths earliaest is leerty P01nt Stora, a handsoms

Federal period structure and a Fayetteville landmark. Of considerablas

istorical interest 1s the point itself, a vestige of early street patterns
nd the site of ths Lloertj Point Resolves of June 20, 1775.

-
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The north side of the first block of Person Street comprises the
oldast commercial district in Fayettevilla and is a historically and archi-
tecturally uniqus area of the city. The row reflects the reorientation of
the city following the Revolution, when the two towms of Campballtown, ths
Hichland Scot sattlement at tha head of the Caps Fear Riwver, and Gross
Creek, a Scottish villags on the Cross Creek, in the present Markst Square
vicinity, merged in 1783 to form Fayettevills. A grid street pattern was
superimposaed on the picturesque topographic street pattern which had evolwad
during the eighteenth century. This city plan laid out Person Strest (the
aast arm of Market Square), which extends directly from the Market Housa
at the center of Market Squars to the Cape Fear River. Business activity
shifted from Bow Streset, the narrow curved street bshind Parson Strest
wnich had been the main street of the Cross Creek settlement, to Person

R
- Srraat.

TLibarty Point, the triangular plot formed by the acute intersection
of Psrson and Bow streets, 1s cherished locally because of its historical
association. On Juna 20, 1775, the Liberty Point Resolves, which declarad
he support of Cumbsrland County citizens to the continental cause, wara
wlopted on this site, then a much wider point. The Liberty Point Stors,
he Federal style commercial building which bordsrs the site on tha wast,
abuts both streets and is actually a transitional buildirngin the reorisnta-
tion. TFayetteville citizens have long assumed the store to be the building
in which the meeting occurred, but this structure and ths rest of the

cr
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Libarty Row buildings postdate 1783. The Libesrty Point Store, howsvar,

is the oldest bullding in Libarty Row and the oldest kunown commercial

bnilding in tha city, and is a symbol of ths historic event to Fayetteville

ﬂ*tizon“ Its survival is explained partially by their attention and
yartially by neglect, for this area has been a depressed commercial district

3-1 ing most of Tthe twentisth century.
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The date of the store is uncertain. In 1817 Ann R. Quince sold the point
Jot to Elisha Stedman, a prominent Fayetteville businessman, for $1,000 (a
price probably indicating a building on the premises). An 1831 fire levelad
much of the commercial district, but the merchants of this block announced
their return to their former stands in local newspapers immediately following
the fire. On January 11, 1833, six months following the fire, Elisha Stedman's
executor sold "a brick tennament [sic] occupied by C. J. Haigh with land to
the point" for $2,425 to John Kelly. This is the earliest known deed reference
to the Tibarty Point Stora. This brick tenement could have bean a new structur
built after the fira, the rebuilt structurs, or ths partially burnsd structurs.
TIn 18li2, the ysar in which John Kelly convsysd the Libsrty Point lot containing
a "brick House" to his niece Catherine Daily, he was taxed for this lot and
building, referred to in the tax 1ists as the "Liberty Point brick stors," for
$2,000. Thus by 1842 ths building was already known as the Libsrty Point Stora.
Tts original function is unknown. The two known early ownsrs, Stedman and
Kelly, ware both preominent businessmen with widespread investments in ths
booming new town. Kelly, a waglthy Irish Catholic immigrant, was a leading
Fayetiteville importer, and it is possible that the Liberty Point Store was
hiz retail establishment.

[8})

This arsa was a vital commercial district during the ninateenth century.
tavillae, situated a®t the head of one of the few navigabls rivers in ths

Payat
state, was one of the chief csenters for the distribution of goods in and out

of western North Carolina. Liberty Row, nicknamed "Robber's Row" in the early
nineteenth century because of the abundance of shops, was also a craft center.
The workshops of the silvaersmiths and pewterers who practiced in Fayetisville
in the late eighteenth and early ninetesnth centuries ware clustersd harse.
xcavation in the basements of several of the Liberty Row storas has rewvealad
traces of their presencs., r. George Barton Cutten's study of The Silversmiths
h Carolina, shows that thess craftsmen migrated into the South from the
England and Middle Atlantic states when their profession became overpop-
ated. Az a rasult of this rasearch and subsequent study, Faystteville is

w bacoming racognized as a major southern center of their activity.

UQ ct

In addition to the devastating 1831 fire, fires in 18L5 and 18L6 destroyad
much of ‘tha rebuilt row, although tle se firaes started from Markst Squars and
apparantly spared tha Libarty Point Store. The solid row of gabled brick
stores were built after the last major fire in 18L6. Deed research on Numbsr
129 Person Street, one of this group, indicated that the store was "in progrsss)’
o August 20, 1840" thus the ownsr must have bagun reconstruction immediataly
“ollowing the July 22, 1845, fire. Ths othsrs were probably constructed

during the same pariod. Their brick construction and brick parapet walls
reflact the attempt at fireproof construction. This gable row survived intact
1

until fhe lats ninatesnth century, when the Italianate commercial structures
brolka into the strestscape. Progress was arrested by the early twentieth
cantury snift of the main commercial district to Hay Street, the continuation

of Parson Strest wast of Market Square, and the buildings of Liberty Row havs
charzed 1ittls since the shift.

GPO 921.724
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A significant physical feature in the Libsrty Row strestscape which has
now disappeared is the alley, indicated on an 1825 map, which cut diagonally
through the middle of the triangular block linking Person and Bow strests. A
building, number 113-115 Person Strest, was constructed in the nack of the
alley in the mid-ninetesnth century. An open passageway was left, howswvar,
through the first-story east half of the building. The remaindsr of the brick
arch which spannad the rear half of the building, forming the rear entrancs,
ig visible within the northeast rear bay. This passagewayis now blocked off
and usad as commarcial space. LIt appears that the passagsway preserved the
practical wid-row access from Person Street to Bow Street (for pedestrian
vraffic, although not for streset traffic as was originally possible)u

GPOQO 921.724
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